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to no other event. ]T;h‘e-imf'ormatwn alluded to was
that of the death of Bheem Ray of Idur, who had
been suceeeded by his son Bharmul; but the latter
was shortly afterwdrds deposed by Rana Sanka *
of Chittoor, wh _'__f“d:zp]aaﬁ;l ‘his son-in-law Rnymul
the son of Sootijmul, ‘at the head of the govern-
Rl m.,;;imenf*' In the year 921y, Bharmul de-
55 "puted | persons to waitl on Moozuffur
i ' Shah, soliciting his aidj and the King
mrdereﬁl Nizam-ool-Moolk, with a detachment, to
restote to him the country of Idar. ~ Having suc-
ceeded in this object, Nizam-ool-Moolk took upon
himself to pursue Raymul the usurper into the
Beesulnuggur territory, where an action ensued,
in which the Mahomedan general was defeated,
and ma,njﬁof his best officers: andéwidlew glain,
| owho had by this time' returned to Ah-
mudabad, | feproved " Nxzam-ool-Mool!-: severely
for acting beyond his instructions, and recalled
him ; but on his arrival in the King’s Lamp he was
appmnmd governor of Ahmudmlggur et
i i Inthisy o yeat 928, ‘Raymul again
"’"-'“-9“’3' appﬁamdm theTdur district, and Zeheer
oomdoiﬁ marehed agamst him, but
was killed at the head of the. eavalry 3 on which
oceasion twd ‘handred and seven men fell, and
the Guzeratties wete defeated.  Mullik Noosrut-
ool-Moblk was now directed to march to Beesul-
nuggur, and to p]under and lay waste the whole of

% Sanga, and flot Sanka, is the true pronunclaunn but as
the same person is mentioned (vol ii.) in the histories of Babur
and Hoemayoon, and the name is there spe]led Sanka, it has not

been altered in this place.
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that countr v, which the I{mg', in his orders, calls
« the receptacle of renegadoes, and the a.sylum qf‘
< rebels.”’ ;

In the same year; bhelkh Humeed Gf Bhdlsa,.
and’ Hubeeb Khan the Kazy of Chely Mebes.
wur®, fled from the persecutzon of! th_e Rajpoots,
and arrived at the Guzerat court. . They had
also sneoeeded in expelling the King of Malwa
from his capital, and had obliged him to seck
safety in Dohud 4, wlhere he was reccived by the

~ governor, who made a repreqentatmn te court,
reporting the circumstance.  Moozuffur Shah im-
mediately sent to the King of Malwa the white
canopy and scarlety pavilion, and a respectable
body of troops, with which he marched against
the Rajpoots. Moozuffur Shah soon followed with
his own army, and defeated the Hindoos in se-
veral ‘actions, but not without considerable blood-
shed ‘on both sides. T'he Rajpoot chief, Bhew Ray,
was at length compelled to take refuge .in--th'e .fb,_r-t
of Mando, wherein he was closely besieged.

At this period Medny Ray, the late m1mster of
the King of Malwa, wrote a letter to. his son
Bhew Ray, desiring him to, hold jout in the fort
for one month only, by whieh time Rana Sanka
of Chittoor would be able to callect. the Marwar
Rajpoots, and march to his assistance. ‘Upon this
Bhew Ray made overtures to the King; and sti-
pulated; that if he would raise the siege for one
month (during which period all the Ra_]poot women
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* Properly Maha-Iswur, !
-f This town is (.onsulered the boundary between Malwa and

Guzerat.



and ¢ehildren would be enabled to quit the. fort),
the“plme should ' be*evacuated, when he would
submit himself to the King’s mercy. 'Although
_Maozuﬁu'r Shah placed little| reliance  on . the
pr omlses of" this perfidious infidel, he withdrew his
aﬂmy six ml}e?; m-';the place, where he remained
twenty days, a ‘measure he adopted out of con-
aideratlon “for the ‘royal family of Malwa, who
were still in the fort, hoping to save them, by ob-
taining the place by capitulation.  On obseu'mg,
however, that elephants were frcquentiy passing
 towards the fort, the King became suspicious of
treaahery, more particularly as he heard that
Rana Sanka of’ Chittoor had arrived, with a large
force, within a few miles of @q}em " In this state
of afthirs, Moomlﬂ'ur Shah di *écted Adil Khan, the
ruler of i Kardeish (who had lately joined the
-army) ‘accompanied by Kowam-ool-Moolk and a
. Guzerat force, to march against the Rana of
Chittoor, while the King h;mself‘ again proceeded
to invest Mando.  From that day the Mahomedans
made false attacks four’
they intended ﬁg}_.@scalaﬂe 5.4 'manceuvre 'which
succeeded in wedring out the garrison with fatigue,
and on the fifth night, Jadders being applied,
Maitdo fell, but not without much slaughter ;
 for the Jimpo@ﬁh, finding' that their enemies had
- sicceeded in' gaining a footing on the ramparts,
aceording’ {0l custom, set fire to their property,
their women,:
bodies, chal tmd the assailants with fury. On this

L-,-

occasion, no fewe: than nineteen thousand Rajpoots

Jost their lives.
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. After the fall. of Mando, Seoltan Mahmood
asked what was to be bis fate; on which the. King
of Guzerat, with a magpanimity and generosity
which alone belongs to the brave, said, ¢ It is true
¢ I have fought hard, but I have fought for you;
ssand I am happy to be now enabled not. only
““ to confirm to you the white canopy and scatlet

« pavilion, but Lo restore you to the capital of your

¢ kingdom, which 1 trust God will long preserve to
SRR R R e A r s R ey

- On the following day, Moozuffur Shah marched
against. Rana Sanka, who received the inform-
ation of the fall of Mando from one of the Rajpoot
officers who had been wounded in the assault, and
had made his escape.. This man was so agitated in
describing the scene he had witnessed, that his
wounds burst during the relation, and he bled to
death in open durbar, On hearing of the approach

of Moozuffur Shah, Rana Sanka retreated ‘to Chits

toors and Adil Khan Farocky, with a small body
of light cavalry, went in pursuit,  He succeeded in
daily cutting off some of the Rajpoot stragglers,
but did not overtake the Rana before he received
orders of recall from Moozuffur Shah.

At this time, Sooltan Mahmood of Malwa i
vited the King to a grand entertainment at Mando,

q,

whither he repaired, attended :;!Jy\,-:-th'ef_ Princes Ba-

hadur Khan and Luteef Khan, as ét’lss),}s-by, CAdil
Khan Farooky. When the King of Guzerat arrived,

his host treated him in every respect as his su-

perior, seating him upon the throne of Malwa, and
standing himself at the foot of it. So far was this
" humility carried, that the King of Malwa waited
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on Moeozuffue Shah at the entertainment, in the
capacity of a'menial servant. = Magnificent pre-
sents were then offered to him and to his sons; after
~which, | Moozuffur = Shah, having left Mando,
was accompanied by Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy as
far as 1’har, when the King wished Sooltan Mah-
‘mood to rl,turn,' and ordered Asuf Khan, with two
‘thousand ‘cavalry, to remain with him in Malwa as
‘an auxiliary force: ' Sooltan Mahmood, however,
persisted in accompanying Moozufiur Shah (s far
as Dydla, whence he repaired to Mando, and
Moozuﬁ'ur Shah proceeded to Champanere.
“iiSearcely had the King of Guzerat reached his
c_ap_ltal wiien he received intelligence that Raymul,
having 'sallied ' from the Beesulnuggur hills, had
_deva*atated the country of Puttun, and sacked the
town of Gilwara, but that he had been compelled to
fall back again by Mullik Noosrut-ool-Moolk, who
commmanded at Tdur, This informution determined
the King to make arrangements for seizing ‘the
'person of Raymul after the rains; and in the year
ki 1925 he marched towards Beesulnuggur,
:'g 195’159 ‘and laid waste the country, but returned
to. M .;mmedahad Champanere  without
i havmg gamed any other object.
“Shortly after his arrival, news were brought
that Sooltan’ Mahmood Khiljy, accompanied by
the (xuzmat auxlliaues under Asuf Kban, having
_attacked the combined forces of Medny Ray-and
Rana Sanka, h‘ld sustained a defeat, and that many
valuable officers of the Malwa forces had been
killed, - Among the Guzeratties, the son of Asaf

Klmn lost his  life, Sooltan Mahmood  himself
A R




L,

wag severely wounded, and fell into' the enemy’s
hands, 'and Rana Sanka  proceeded to Mando.
Moozuffur Shah lost 'no  time in sending' rein<
forcements to the remainder of the Malwa army.
At this. time, Noosrat-ool-Moolk' 'was removed
from the government of Tdur, and Moobatiz-ool:
Moolk nominated to that office.  Shortly after his
arrival at Idur, some petson ventured to extol the
bravery of Rana Sanka *, on which the governor
was much incensed, and an altercation ensued.
Moobariz-ool-Moolk, to show the contempt he had
for the Rana, caused a common cur + to be tied:
up at the fort.gate, directing it to be called Rana
Sanka, The Rana, hearing of this insult, was so
incensed, that he immediately marched towards
Idur, and pillaged the country as far as Serohy..
“The King, having left Kowam-ool-Maolk at
Ahmudabad to act against the Girasia chiefs in
that vicinity, marched to Champanere ot his way.
to Malwa. . Rana Sanka arvived at Bagry, where
he was Jomed by the raJa of’ that provmce, who :
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* 14 will be recull'ected lae' had just defeated the King of
Majiwa and the Guzerat auxiliary troops, & subject on wh:ch
the Guzerat officers would naturally be very sore. Ry )

+ This mode of evincing. contempt is not. conﬁned to the
Mahomedans. Many persnns must racollect tha tune whe.n it
szpou. The practice in tbe East, howe\rer, is partmularly
offensive. | An officer in'a high'diplummc situation with Lord
Lake's army in the field, in 1805, discovered, by accident,
that he had given great offence to his Mahomedan friends by
calling a young lioness Fatima, the name of the daughter of
their prophet, which he instantly changed ; a compliment that,
no doubt, smoothed his future diplomatic communications.
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owed. allegmnca to the crown of Guzerat. Both
the Hindoo: princes: proceeded to Dongurpoor,
 when Meobariz-ool-Moolk, thought it necessary to

write to. court for reinforcements.  -Some indi-

e

viduals about the King inimical to Muoobariz-ool-

Moolk represented that he had wantonly drawn

upmnhtmself the vengeance of Rana Sanka, and

that he was now so alarmed as to apply for aid
even before he was attacked.  The King in conse-
quence suspended the march of any troops to assist
him till after the rains; and Moobariz-0ol-Moolk,

having called a council of war, evacnated ldur,

and retreated ' to Ahmudnuggur.. On the next
day Rana Sanka arrived, and was joined by several
(virasia chiefs who had fled from Kowam-ool-
Moolk. . These assured him that Moobariz ool
Moolk was mot a person likely to fly without
opposition ; but that his own opinion had: been
overruled by his officers, who recommended him
to fall back on. Ahmudnuggur, where he ex-
‘pected to obtaity reinforcements ; on which the
Rapa marched towards that place. « Moobariz-
o0l-Moolk, hearing that he was in pursuit, and
had sworn he would not take rest till"his horse
drank out of the diteh of Ahmudnuggur, resolved
to make a desperate stand, and, undannted by the
superiority of the enemy’s numbers, drew his small
party out in front of the walls of the town, on
the opposite bank of the river. '« The Rana’s army,
- which exceeded that of the Mahomedans as ten to
one, not only received the Guzeratties with great
stezdmess, but chargcd in tbe most gallant man-

ner. Assud Khdn and many other officers of
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distinction were killed; and Sufdur Khan snd
Moobariz-ool- Moolk being severely wounded, the
King’s army was compelled to retreat to Abmud-
abad, leaving Kana Sanka to plunder the surround-
ing country. At Bumuggur, the Rana finding
the  inhabitants to' be chiefly bramins, exempted
them from pecuniary exactions. | The Rana then
proceeded to Beesulnuggur; where he was gallantly
opposed by the govemnor, Mullik Hatim, who
lost 'his life in its defence.  Having thus sue-
cessfully plundered the country, the Rana re.
turned, unopposed, to Chittoor. The King, during
this time, was on the Malwa frontier ; but Kowam-
ool-Moolk, the viceroy of Guzerat, placed a re-
spectable force at the disposal of Moobariz-ool-
Moolk, and enabled him to return to Ahmudnuggur.
On the march thither, he was opposed by a body
of Kolies and Girasias from the Idur district, who
were defeated, and sixty-one Girasias killed 3 but
on his arrival at Ahmudnuggur, finding the country
destitute of ' provisions and inhabitants, owing to
‘the! late ravages, he was compelled to fall: back
on Puranty. « The King, hearing of these cir
cumstances, directed Imad-col-Moolk and Keisur
Khan to proceed to Ahmudnuggur; but the
famine which prevailed obliged them also to re.
treat.  Determined, however, not to allow Ahmud-
nuggur to be abandoned, the King remanded ‘them
back at all hazards during the rains, resolving
after that season to mﬁrch in person agamst Rzma
Sanka.

“Mullik Eiaz Sooltany, ougmally a slave. born
in the King’s family, offered to march with the
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Surat dw:su;m, consisting of twenty thousand horse
and a quantity of artlllery and rockets, to reduce
Rana Sanka; representing that it was beneath the
King’s digmky to proceed in person against a
common marauder.  The King gave no answer;
Mohurfﬁm butin the ‘month of Mahurrum, in the

i 997 - year 927, marched to Ahmudnuggur,

Dets | where he directed his army to assemble.
A D 1520, Mulhk Eiaz now repeating his request,
the Guﬁ'erat army, composed of one hundred thou-
sand ‘cavalry and:on¢ hundred elephants, were
placed under his orders, of which the reserve,
consisting of twenty thousand men, followed, under
the command of Kowam-ool-Moolk. * On the ar-
vival. of the: army at Mahrasa, Taj Khan and
Nizam:ool-Moolk also joined with their divisions.

Mullik Eiaz representing that so large a force was
quite | unnecessary, left behind him nearly the
- whole of thie elephants, and the greater part of the
cava.lry, which ' had lately joined. Sufdur Khan,
in command of the advance, plundered the dis-
trict of Mahrasa on his route, putting many Raj-
poots to death, and also taking many prisoners ;
and Mullik Eiaz, proceeding by Dongurpoor and
Banswala, reduced those towns to ashes, and
thence marched on to' Chittoor. = One day Mullik
bhoo;aaool-Moolk and Sufdur Khan, the officers
in advance, obtained intimation that Oody Sing
the Ray of Poloh, and Qogur Sein Poorby, were
lying in' wait' at the back of some hills, near
which they were encamped, intending to make a
night-attack upon them. The Guzerat officers
‘anticipated the measure, and leaving their tents

g,
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standing, fell: upem the Ra_]pﬂats with' only two
hundred ' men ; on which occasion the Rajpoots
were defeated with the loss of eighty men killed,
and Oogur Sein Poorby was severely wounded.
Mullik Ima?, hearing ‘of the attack, ordered:the
line under arms, and galloped towards the scene
of action ; but he was too late to witness even the
defeat: ' The success of the Mahomedans “had
been cowplete; and Mullik Eiaz publicly ap-
plauded ' the gallantry of this daring little party.
On the following' day Kowam-ool-Moolk  was
ordered to pursue the fugitives; and although
he did not come up with them, he so laid waste the
countr} of Banswala that he did not leave even a
blade of grass. Mullik Eiaz now marched on to the
attack of Mundsoor, while Rana Sauka also moved
in the same direction, and encamped within twelve
coss.* ' Here Rana Sanka proposed: sending ‘an
envoy to the King, consenting, as a preliminary, to
‘acknowledge fealty to the crown of Guzerat; con-
nected with  this overture, however, there were
certain conditions so extravagant that Mullik Fiaz
determined  to prosecute the siege of ‘Mundsoor.
The attack was in much forwardness, and the
mines in progress, when an officer  arrived in
camp, stating that. Sooltan  Mahmood, King of
Malwa, was in full march to co-operate with the .
Guzerat army 3 shortly after. which he  arrived,
In a very few days Kowam-ool- Moolk had brought
the approaches so. close as to be capable of
effeeting a breach ;. but Mullik Eiaz, Jedlﬂub lest
the former should gain all the medn, of the

02 MOOZURFUR SHAH 1.

w Twenty -four miles.



siege, ordered him hack to the lines; & circum.
stance which gave generftl offence in the army;
On the fallamng morningy Moobariz-06l-Moolk,
withiia: party of Guzerat horse, marched without
ordem to attack Rana Sanka; but Mullik Eiaz,

le:wmg the (:amp, mtereepted and! brought him

backi to the lines. . The object of Mullik Eiaz was
to wait till the springing of one of the mines, and

then to head the assault, and ensure to hlmsaii_

the honour of the capture. The mine was at
 length exploded, and a practicable breach ef:
fected 3 but the Rajpoots, having discovered the
point. to which it was directed, had. already cut
off the breach, and the attack failed in conse-
quence. | On this event Rana Sanka made further
overtures. to Mullik, Eiaz; the preliminary  of
which was an acknowledgment of allegiance to
Guzerat;  promising, besides, to return all the ele.
- phants | taken in  the battle of Ahmudnuggur,
Maullik Eiaz availed himself of this second oppor-
tunity of puttmg an end to the war, foreseeing
that no co-operation could take place between him
and the other Guzerat officers. A suspension
of hostilities was accordingly agreed on, until
communications could be received from the ng
In spite of this agreement, some of the junior
officers  formed a plan, in concert with  Sool-
tan. Mahmood of Malwa, to attack the Rana’s
camp on the ensuing Wednesdfiy Mullik Eiaz,
having obtained information of their intention,
deputed a confidential officer. to wait upon the
King of Malwa, informing him that the King
of Guzerat had been pleased to appeint him

. MOOZUFFUR SHAH. 1, 98

S,



S,

commander<n-chief. of' the forees in the province
of - Chittoor, with  discretionary powers to con-
clude the war ; but having heard that part of the
Guzerat army had resolved to march in: concert
with a body of his troops against. Rana Sanka,
he' thought /it his duty to protest against the
measure, saying, that there was every reason to
dread that so disgraceful a breach of faith would
end in defeat. No reply being received to this
‘message, Mullik  Eiaz ordered the Guzerat line
under arms on the day appointed for the attack ;
W and instead of marching against Rana Sanka he
“moved to Khiljipoor, where hie conferred honoraty
dresses on the Rana’s agents, and gave them their
dismissal,  On this Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy res
turned to Mando, and Mullik Fiaz to Cham-
panere, where he was honoured with a title, and
was created governor of Did. ' Moozuffur Shah,
at the same time, made up his mind to march in
person against Rana Sanka on the following year.
Mullik Eiaz, having learned the King’s intentions,
despatched a confidential person secretly to the
Rana, saying, ‘ As we have contracted 2 friend-
s¢ ship during the late negotiations, it is but fair that
¢ we should assist each other by advice. I think
«it my duty, therefore, to inform you that the
« King 1is highly displeased that the army re-
« tarned  without having effected any object of
«importance; and he, in conSequence, intends
¢in a few months more to march in -person to
« plunder your countsy. I therefore advise you
e to send, as soom as possible, your eldest son
« as ambassador to this court with a number of

MOOZUFFUR SHAH 1L
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% :vuluable presents, regretting the differences which
sexist, and begging to be considered us a vassal
¢ of' this erown. This appears to me to be the
-« only mode by which' you can secure your own
| mmfaty, or avert the evil of a war.”’

In the year 928, the King proceeded

‘;*_ ‘;‘ ‘l}ggl from Champanere to Ahmudabad ; but
o+ wwhile collecting his army at Aakraa, n
order to attack Chittoor, he heard that Rana

* Sanka had deputed his son with large presents to’

intercede for him, and that the young rana had al-
ready reached Mahrasa on his way to Ahmudabad.
Moozuffirr Shah accordingly halted, and received
the embassy, ordering an honorary dress to be
given to the Rana’s son, with assurances of recon-
ciliation. . The King ithen broke up the army
and came to Ahmudabad 3 when he heard of the
death of Mullik Eiaz, on whose son he conferred
hls E&thgr 8 govemment and honorary titles. i
i In the year 929, the King marched
i _:: f?éi, in person to Champanere, to quell an in-
oo surrection in that quarter, and he subse-
_quently caused the town of Mahrasa to be repaired.
1t was about this time thatthe Prince Julal Khan,
the son of Sikundur Lody of Dehly, who had, in a
fit of rage, put to death one of the principal nobles

of his brother’s government, reached the. court’ of

Guzerat. Julal Khan had previously applied re-
peatedly for the aid of Guzerat troops to assist in
dethroning bis brother Ibrahim ; and on the present
occasion Moozuffur Shah ordered a force to ac-
company him to Dehly for the purpose ; but a full
account of the tramacnons connected with this



event has already been ; fxven in the hzst»orv of
Deh]y

6 | MOOZUFFUR| SHAH I,

n the ye&r 931, the ng m:trched'
‘:‘;: ?gé«t- towands Idur; onwswhich oceasion the

Prince Babadur Kban complaived that
his allowances were insufficient to maintain the
establishment due to his rank, and requested
that they tmght be made equal to those of his
elder brother, Sikondur Khan. Muozuﬁur ‘Shah,
for political reasons, gave no decisive answer to this
request, but promised- to consider the  subject.
Meanwhile the Prince, impatient of’ delay, left the
King’s camp without taking leave, and returning
first to Ahmudabad, pmceeded evenfual}y, to the
country of Qody Sing, the Raja of Poloh, hy whom
"he was received. with marks of attention, - Trom
Poloh he went on to Chittoor, where he was received
by, Rana Sanka, who presented him with splendid
offerings ; thence he went by Ajmeer to Mewatt,
where the governor, Hussun Khan, marched se-
veral stages to meet him.  After remaining some
time there, he went on to Dehly, and was fa-
vourably received by Ibrahim Lod}, who was at
that time preparing to repel the i invasion of Babur.
Bahadur Khan having on one occasion defeated a
detachment of Moguls with a small body of Guze-
ratties, the Afghan chiefs of Dehly, disgusted with
Ibrahim, proposed elevatmg the Guzerat prince to

the throne of Dehly. Ibrahlm Lody, howevel,

g V;de vol. i p. 394 The Guzerat historian has committed
an anachronism in fixing the arrival of Julal Ehan so late as
152‘2 .
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taking the necessary precautions, the Prince found
it necessary to fly for safety to Joonpoor.

\ Moosuffur Shah; hearing of the conduct of his
'soti, wrote to Kh ooderbunda Khan, who had accom-

panied him, to entreat the Prince to return to.
Guzerat, promising to overlook all the events con-

nected with his sudden departure. Shortly after

 this the King was taken dangerously ill; and his

discase daily increasing, factions began to be
' f’ormed in the army, one party espousing the cause
of the Pnnce Sikundur, and another that of the
 youngest prince, Luteef Khan. The King was
observed to bewvery anxious to hear of Bahadur
Kha’s return, and it was gencrally supposed that

he mtended o' declare him his successor ; but on-

Friday, the 2d of Jumad-ool-Awul, in the year
082, having sent for his eldest son, the Prince
_ bxkundul, he gave him his blessing, and proclsumed
him his heir.  On the following' da

J?&laﬁngd he departed this life, in the ﬁﬂf—smtg
As it 962, year of his age, and in the fifteenth of his

Feb.17. reign. Moozuflur Shah was considered
AROlARG just and upnght prince, strictly ad-
hering on all occasions to the tenets of the faith,
Among his accomplishments was that of writing a
beautiful hand, in which he employed many of
his leisure hours. During his lifetime he tran-
~seribed several copies ot. the Koran, which he sent
to Mecea to be placed near the holy shrine. He

~also greatly promoted Iehrning ; so that men of

~ letters from Persia, Arabia, and Turkey, found it
worth their while to settle in Guzerat durmo' his

11bera1 and auspicions reign.
VOL. IV, - A
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| Moozuffur Shak is succeeded by his eldest son, Szkuwfur. me Lhe
| Prince Lutecf, the King's younger. lzro#ker, goss into rebellion
e petires 1o Ck:ﬁom', where he ﬁmis yrotection with the Rana.

— .'{’.Tze Rana dgﬁeaés the ng ' amay. el wa Kﬁng dwgmts

DURING the pamf;zl and protmcted ﬂlness of
Moozuffur Shah, each of the two facﬁoﬁs m. tﬁe -
~army took a decided part. to favour its respective
leader ; but the late King having expressly nos
i mmated blktmdm Khan, the éidest son, to the
* throne of Guzerat, the youngest, Prince Luteef,
marched with his adherents towards Nundoorbar
and booltanpoor. bnklmdur Shab, after having
buried the late King at Surkech, proceeded to
Champanere, . Here he learnt that one Shah
Sheikhjee, the son of the celebrated Boorhan.
ood—Deen Owlia, conbuiered the most holy man
of the ‘age, had for etold that his brethez, ‘the
Prince Bahadur, would eventually succeed to the
throne.  Sikundur Sh]' , incensed at this pre-
diction, condescended to yent his mdlgmtmn in
abusing that holy personage in the most gross and
indecent terms; he was also so imprudent as to
treat with indignity the different nobles of his
governmer:t, the supporters of his father’s throne,
and to confer honours and estates on the com.-
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panions of his youthful follies and excesses. Among
those who resented this conduet, by withdrawing
from court, was Imadiool: Moolk Sooltany; an
'Ab‘;ssmmn slave of the mother of Sikundur Shah,
and a great favourite of the late king. At the

same time, also, 1t became known, that the Prince
Luteef Khan' bad raised a considerable toree in the

.nelghbmuhood of ‘\Tundombar and Sooltanpoer,
and a}apeared only to wait for an opportunity of
declaring his pretensions to the. throne. Under
these circumstances, Sikundur Shah  deputed one
Mullik Luteef’f with the title of Shirza Khan, to
oppose hlm, ;= _t___'heaung that the Prince Lu-
teef Khan had gone to Chittoor, the tioops were
dicected tu march in that directmn, where they
‘sustained a complete defeat: On which occasion
the general with many othel eﬁiceia ()f zhatmctxon,,
feli; and the remainder of the foree was cut off in

detail by the Kolies and Rajpoots, having lost no
less a number than oneﬁhwsand severr hundlcd

_.meu. )

The. mhaébttants of (xuzmat deemmg t,hls an ine

'aquwmus omen of the new reign, the nobles of

the old government perstiaded Imad-ool-Moolk |
that the King designed to put him' to death.

Conscious of being ill- disposed towards him), Imad-
ool-Moaolk readily gave ear to these assertions,

and determined to. ani:lcipa.te Sikundur Shah’s

Aintentions, by placing ale,her descendant of the
house of Moozuffur on the throne, ‘hoping to

- ensure to himself the, superintendence of the affairs
of the state. Imad ool- Moolk therefore plepmecl

a party to attack and put to death the ng’..._-_

H 2
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in one of his usual rides; but the oppnrtumty
passed without the plan succeeding. The King,
dithough warned of the danger, treated it lightly
in public; but the circumstance dwelt on his
mind so much, that on that very night he dreamed
. that he was visited by the holy Synd Julal Bok-
har Vs Shah Alum, and .Eshdh bhellihjce and also by
his  father, Moozaffur Shah, who addressed htm,
saying, Slkundm, Slkundm, deSééud from the
e thmnc, for it is the lot of another. . This dream
we:ghed heavily on his spirits. He arose early next
 morning, rode out, and played chowgan ; after
which he returned, breakfasted, and endecwourerl
 to forget his cares, ‘and drown his thoughtb in
sleep, . Although the plot for the King’s' death had
failed on the preceding day, Imadmol-Moolk had
.+ by no means relinquished it; so that, after the King
~ had lain down, that officer, together with Ba,ha-oolu
Moolk, Dar-col-Moolk Smf’ Khan, two Turkish
s]'wes, and one Abyesuua’f} entered the palace with
armos.  Sikundur Shah, awakened by the noise made
by the opposition of his guards, rushed out to
ascertain the cause, when the assassins meeting him
Shaban 19, put him to death.  Thus ended the life
‘avi 982, of Sikundur Shah, on the 19th of Shaban,
. May 80. in the year 932, after a short Ielgn of
R 15% thxee months, and seyen téen clays,

100  SIKUNDUR SHAH.
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Nuseﬁr }&’?ams, @ bmther r_}f tke laie King, s va ?seu‘ lo U':r, fﬁmne,

and assumes ho tille of Makimood Shak 1L — The King’s

elder brother, ‘the Prince Bakadur, arrives fram Dehly, and
m:zng Jumad fry the :wbies, ascmds the throne.

AFTFR the death of S]kundm Shali, his corpse was
i (,mlveyc,d to Halole, in the Chdmp'mem district,

whele it was interred, and Nuseer Khan, the

King’s youncvol brother, was raised to the throne by
Imad-ool- Moolk, under the title of N_ﬂdhmood Shal.
Al the ofﬁcs‘rs went through .tlsl gual forms of
congmtulahons to the new monarch, and received
honnmry dresses from: 1Imad-ool- Moalk who be-
came reﬂ'ent, and who cdﬁ“f’eucd titles in th{. ng g
name.on one hundred and cighty persons on the
day of the coronation. The complete ascendency
obtained by the minister excited the envy of the
rest of theunobies, and induced them to write
to! the Prince Bahadur Khan, who was absent 'in
Hmdaostcm, to return to Guzerat, and assert his
claims to the throne. These letters ¥ ere des-
patehed by l{htp‘qdabunda Khan and Taj Khan,

~ and had the effect of expediting the march of Ba-

~ hadur, who was already on his journey, having com-

‘menced it on the first intelligence of his father §

death. Imad-ool-Moolk, hearing of his approach,

| deputed an officer of rank, charged with presents
< i R )
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i of’ jewels and money, to Boorhau Nizam Shah of

‘Ahmudnuggur, inviting him to march to his aid.
The lotter accepted the offerings, but took no
measures to assist the Guzerat minister, = Letters
 were also written to the Raja of Poloh to oeccupy

“the road leading to Champaner e, and to the Mogul

Emperor Babur of Dehly, promising a crore of
rupees if he would lend his aid, by sending a force
down the Indus to land at Div, and co-operate with
the Guzerattics. Theiiatter communication never

o ireached its' destiny, havmfr heen mteu.epted by the
- ruler of Dongurpoor.

B hian was near DL}]I)? whm the letters
irom Khoodabunda Khan, intimating  the death
‘of Moozuffur Shah, renchcd him ; and at the same
time he recewed a deputation from the Afghans
of Joeupo r,aentreating him to assume the go-
vernment ¢ country, In order to satisfy
both partms,.he promised to pursue whatever di-

i lecuon his ‘horse nnrrht@t'lke, and throwing the
‘reins upon the animal’s neck it took the road to

- Guzerat. On his arrival at Chittoor he was joined
by his two brothers, Chand Khan and Ibrahim
Khan, who gave him thc first infor mdt;qn of the as-
sassination of the late King, Slkumhu Shah, after
- which event they had fled, and taken refuge. Wlt_h the
Rand, . Cland Khan preiened remaining at Chit.

- toor, but suhsequently went to ya, whlletf[bz a-
him accompanied Bahadur Khan: At Poloh he was
joined by the Raja. Oody Sing, and also by a few of
the pcxsomtl-adhererm of ‘the late King, among'

- whom were Mullik Susvur and Yoosoof Khan

Babadur Khan, having now assumed the tl\tie of

b 'vmmroo'n SHAH IL
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Shah, sent a confidential officer in advance, with a
conciliatory ‘and moderate proclamation to Taj
Khan, mentioning that he was thus far on his road
‘to Ahmudabad.  This officer, who commanded a
force under Tmad-ool-Moolk, was absent at Dun-
dooka ; but hearing of Bahadur Shal’s arrival on
the frontier, instantly joined his standard, The
 Prince Luteef Khan, the second sow of Moo-
~ zuffor Shah, then at Dundooka, raised ‘@ sum of

money there for his expenses, and marched to

join his cousin Futteh Khan. On his arrival at

Dongurpoor, Bahadur Shah was j‘pi ned by K‘ilodrll-m'
Khan and many of the Guzerat officers; so that
Imad-ool-Moolk, finding himself deserted by most
of his adherents, began to lavish the royal treasures
in raising troops. Me succeeded by this means in
bringing together a great concoutse of people, few
~of whom were soldiers ; and, rdered Azd-ool-
- Moolk, accompanied by fifty elephants, to march
‘to Mahrasa, and cut off the communication be-
ti?eén' Bahadur Shah and the Guzeratties. On
. reaching Mahomednuggur, many officers - who
. were afiaid to join him before now went over to
~ Bahadur %a}% and Azd-ool-Moolk was compelled
to fall back on Champanere, and to join Imad-ool-
Moolk.  Bahadur Shah, continuing his march to
Mah: sa, received at that place fiom Taj Khan
 the royal jewels; after which, proceeding to Nehr-
. wala Puttun, Bahadur Shah was formally crowned
i on the 26th of Rumzan, A.H. 932,
T 992, and reached Ahmudabad on the 28th.
¢ August 8 Imad-ool-Moolk having been joined by
| AvD.15%6.  the Prince Luteef, attempted to reach

4
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Tke Prmce Bakadnr retﬂrns jmm Deliy, and ascends the throne.
= A feeble effort is mede to create an insurrection by the

| Prince Tadeef Khan, who is scverely wounded, and dies. —

. Imad-ool-Moolk, end the regicides of Sthunduy Shah, all suffer
death, - Gregt gﬂ"m ts made by the Por 1uguese to occupy the
| addand of Dity in which they are repulsed, — -~ Bahadur Shah
) ‘s inwited to aid the K’sﬁg of Berar against the King of Ah-
- mudnuggur — he proceeds tv the south, and causes himself to
% recognised King of Ahmudnuggur — -makes war with the
Kang of Malwa — conquers his country, and puts the King to
_I-deatn'z u—-_;vaakes a war with Hoomayoon, the Great Mogul —
Tt 3 de_ﬂj&aie:f and. loses all his dominions, with the exception of
@ small portion. gf Guzerat — is supported by the Portuguese
e -)‘ecowr fffm kmgdam mas killed b J tﬁe Pormguese in an

N _he ﬁrst day of the fu{lowmg month B.zha.dm
Shah marched to Champauere, at which place Imad-
. ool-Moolk still con&aquud He was, however, much
~impeded by the heavy rain which fell at that season,
nd was obliged to halt on the Saburmutty ; but
- very soon after. pontmumw his march, he arrived
on the banks . of the Mehindry, at the Khaupoor
' Imad-ool-Moolk, hearing of the King’s
' ap , dispersed his force over the Baroda dis-
triet, fo distract his attention; but this manceuyre -
ot the effect of diverting Bahadur Shah from
narch on Champanere, ‘where Imad-ool-Moolk
‘the confederates were eventually seized by
Khan. Tmad-ool-Moolk, his son, and Seif
Khan, torrethe with the ot.hei" regicides taken,
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were hanged, and their pmpeu ty confiscated; while
Rufut-ool-Mou]k, an old servant of Moozuﬂm
Shah, received the title of Imad-ool-Moolk, = Azd-
ool-Moolk, hearing of the fate of his party, fled
from Baroda, leavmg his property to be plun-
dered by a party of Kolies. Shumsheer-ool-Moolk
was despatched in purqult of Azd-o0l-Moolk, and Ni-
zam-ool-Moolk in pursuit of Mohifiz Khan, Both

 these chiefs sought refuge with Qody Sing, Raja
of Poloh; but they were soclosely followed, that

_ the little property they had with them fell into the
hands of! the King’s troops. Most of the officers
who adhered to the fortunes of Imad-col-Moolk
were in the end scized, and suffered death ; some
were hanged, and others blown fra -'glms, while
the property of all was confiscated.  Lhe Prince
Luteef Khan, aﬂzer having remained for some’ time
concealed in the eity of Champanere, fled to the
_country of Poloh, and Azd-ooLMooik and Mohaﬁz
Khan to Mutwar. *
Zeckad 15, After having gattenf ud of all hlS
A, 1. 992.  enemies, Bahadur Shah, on the Tothiof
August 20, Zeekad, went throngh the form of being -
4:2:15%6. . aeain crowned at Champadere, that city
having been considered, daring the few last reigns,
the capital of the kingdom. The Frince Luteef
Khan, who had taken post in the Ahwas hil vas
joined by several of the discontented nobles; and
Alugh Khan was appointed: to the command of an.
army sent against him, Shovtly a,&ex th(, depmture

’BAHAUUR; SHAH,

* Matwar is. the trau: oi‘ count.ry lymg between t,he Nerbudda ol
and Tapty rivers, north  and sauth, and little ﬂadlpoar a.nd :

Choly Meheswur, east and west.
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of these troops, Alugh Khan was represented as
being one of the assassins of the fate Sikundur
Shah.  Bahadur Shah ‘was no less enraged than
astonished at this information ; and havmg made

_st.mct enquiries, and ascertaining that the accus-
“ation 'was false, he ordered the calumniators to

" hé ae's erely pumshed In the commencemcnt of

aem, 993,
L D- 1-.‘26

the followmo- year, 988, a vei 'y serious
“mutiny broke out among the cavalry ;
" and a large party, headed by nearly

_ two thousand officers, marched to the mosque,
and prevented the performance of public worship
.-tﬂl thﬁy recezved their arrears of pay. Baha-

, though he could ill brook this conduet,
?c@d::-,,,;ﬁam motives of policy, to com.
‘demands, having good reason for
o that'wolent measures  would induce
 join the Prince Luteef Khan. Shortly

E-_-aﬂ;ay"ﬂns ‘event, information arrived, that, in con-

sequence of the advance of the Prince towards

.-:_Soultanpoor, the governor Gbazy Khan had
. anarched, attacked, and defeated him, and that
©although his friends Azd-ool-Moolk and Mohafiz

--"_'Khan had niade their escape, Ray Bheem and

;.fl.h}a brothers had  fallen in the action, and the

ice, being severely wounded, had been taken
risoner. . On this news the King deputed Mo-

-.-htb 00l M oolk and some other nﬂblemen to wait
Con  his brother, in.ordes to ses that his wounds

o ere properly attended to, and to  administer

: ._ery comfort to him, till he could be removed
to the ‘eapital. ' The Prince Luteef, however,

ne-ver ‘recovereds but shortly after died, and
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was buried at Halole, near Champanere, by the
side of the late Sikundur Shah. During this
year, Nuseer Kban, who had formerly assumed the
title of Malimood Shah, also died ; and a suitable
estabhshment of holy men was maintained ' to

S,

say daily. prayer&s for the souls of these departt,d-"

princes.

Meanwh:lé, Oody Sing, Ray of' Po!oh, w1th a bancl- -

of marauders, marched and laid waste the country

of Dohud ; and most of the public property. fell
into their hands, This inread so much incensed the

King, that he ordered Taj Khan, with all the
cavalry, con31st1ng of nearly one huudled thnuscmd_
men, to attack and annihilate these bands. The
devastation committed by Taj Khan'’s army mducul
the Ray to send ambassadors tosue for mercy on

~ any terms.  Taj Khan resolved to act up: atmcﬂy.
to his orders, and seemed detummed to de&troy i
the whole race. Driven to desperation, the Ray
at last took up a strong position, and bore the |

brunt of an action, in which his troops were de-

feated and himself killed; butit is a remarkable fact, |
that on this occasion only one Mahomedan of Taj

Khan’s army is said to have fallen. ' His force was
shortly after recalled, and himself deputed to Cam-
bay, in order to assume the government of that

district, as the inhabitants had fr equently __made

complaints against the present governor.

/On the following year, 934, Bahddur i
A 1984 Qhah marched towards the countries of

A. D, 1528.

turned by Champanere to Bar oach, for the purpose
of superintending the repairs of that fortress ; after

Idur and Wagur, from whence he re-
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“which he went in person to Cambay, where having

heard that a European vessel had been taken and
the crew made prisoners off Diu, he repaired

" to that place, and was met by Kowam-ool-

Moolk. Al the Earopeans taken on this occasion
were circumeised, and became Mahomedans. *

On hig return to his capital, Bahadur Shal re-
‘ceived a letter from his nephew, Meeran | Ma-

Hbﬁled -'Kﬁan,_ ruler of Kandeish,  stating ' that
Ameer Bereed Shah of Bidur and Boorhan Ni-

zam  Shah Bheiry of Abmudnuggur, haviug en-

tered into a confederacy, had marched to attack
Berar; that in consequence Meeran Mahomed
had lent his aid to Imad Shah, King of
Berar; and opposed them. He stated also that a

 severe engagement took place, in which the Tagter
had béen drawn into an ambuscade by Boorhan

Nizam Shah, and his troops defeated ; and, more-

over, that a number of Meeran Mahomed Khan’s
elephants had fallen into the hands of the Dec-
canies on this occasion ; and, lastly, that they had

taken the fort of ‘Mahoor by assault, from Imad
_"Sh_i'tjh.'ff.Sti?at-h-ét-?',h-g..'-begged the aid of Bahadur Shah.
Upon this Bahadur Shah desited an answer to

be written, stating that during the lase year he

i The' Portuguese historian states, that they rasisted be-
coming converts, and were eventually, released: - James, de

Mesquita was the name of the officer, and his- whole crew

only ‘consisted of sixteen men in a boat. It is certain that

~ James de Mesquita was with Bahadur Shah afterwards, at the
‘siege of Chittoor, and was employed by him us his envoy to

A

Nuno de Cunha in the yom that Bahadur Shah lost his life,
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had sent the governor of Nehrwala to the Dee:

QL

can, in order to accommodate the differences

which existed, in conformity with the wishes of

Imad Shah, ‘in which he happily succeeded ; but
that as it now appeared the Deccanies had become
the aggressors, he should pwc'ee,d to thdt quarter
in person, :
Moburibibl; In conformity with the mtentmn ex-

At 985, pressed in this letter, Bahadur Shah

* September, moved, in the month of Mohurrum, of

.- 15%.  the year 985, with a large force towards
 the Dececan.  On reachmrr Baroch ‘he was ovet-

taken by Jam Feroze, mle' of Tutta, in Sind, who .

stated that the Arghoons had made a descent upon

his country, and taken it. Bahadm Shab’ gave to

the Jam twelve lacks of rupees *  for the present,
pledging himself to march hereafter amd recwex |

his territory from the Arghoons.

The fame of Bahadur Shah by this act of g‘eneQ

rosity spread far and near. He was welcomed by

the inhabitants of all the countries through which

he passed in proceeding to the Deccan; and he
~was joined by the nephew it of the Raja of
Gualiar with a body of Rajpoots, as also by
Sreeputty Ray, the nephew of Rana Sanka, with
many chiefs of distinction, as well as by some of
the nobles of the Deccan.  The movements of this
immense army being very slow, aud a large portion

having halted for some time at Champanere Imhd s

* 14,0001 sterling, I
1 Nursing, the: nephew of Man- Smg — Mxrut-Iskundry
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Shah, King of Berar, became impatient of the
delay, and sent his son Jafur Khan to Bahadur
Shah, informing him that Boorhan Nizam Shah

had shut the doors of negotiation, and that nothing -

could be effected without the King's presence.
Bahadur Shah therefore instantly marched on to
the Nerbudda, ‘on the banks of which river he
was met by Meeran Mahomed Khan, who en-
treated him to visit Boor hanpoor, where he enter-
; tdlned hlm AR ia sumptuous manner, ph,csentm{r
‘him with elephants horses, &ec. ' At this place
he was JDIHEd by Imad Shah, from Gavulgur.
The combined armies of Guzeraty Ixandmsh, and
j Bnrar 1 _}Bahadur Shah, now commenced their

“march tllwugh Berar  towards Mahoor, against

Boorhan Nizam Shah, who gradually retreating,
_drew the allies after him as far as Jalna, where
the ng having manifested intentions of occupy-
ing the country of Berar for himself, a secret
‘communication was opened  with 'the enemy,
and Boorhan Nizam Shah agreed to restore some
. of the captured elephants, and also consented  to
- read the Khootba in the name of the King of Gu-

zerat, and even promised to pay tribute, it he would

return to his own country, Bahadur Shah con-
tinued his mar ch till he reached Dowlntabad, and
encamped at the Howz Kootloo, where he halted
for some time, in order to refresh his army. The
eneny, however, ‘contrived to intercept the sup-
plies from the northward and westward, which
' caused great distress to his followers and cattle,
and oceasioned a famine in his camp.  Notwith-
standmg which, Bahadur Shah compelled Boorhan
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Nizam Shah to ac.'knowledgt, him King of Ahmud-
nuggur and (mzerat,- in ' the' former of which
places proclamations were made, and public prayers
read in bis name.  In the beginning of the year

987 he returned to Guzerat, and re-
G ﬁ ?%;';ﬂ ‘mained during  the rainy season 'at

Ahmudabad.  After  the ' monsoon he
mmched towards Idur, and despatched Khooda-
bunda Khan and’ Imad-ool-Moolk with a large
force to Wawux, himwself marching to Cambay.
Thence he embarked in a vessel, aud._.-smled to
‘Dity; after which he proceeded to Dongurpoor and
Banswara, levied the usual COnmbutmns, and re-
turtied eventually to Mahomedabad Champanere.
" At this period Oomr Khau, Kooth Khan,
and ‘many nobles of (the Dehly court, having
fled from the Emperor Babur, sought proteetion
with Bahadur ‘Shah. 'The King now went to
Mahrasa, where he was met by Khoodabunda

Khan, and many other officers; he then mawhedl

to Wagns, and having reduced  that province,
placed civil and military officers in the different
towns to collect the tribute, Pursaram, Raja of
‘Wagur, submitted to the King, while his son
becume a convert to the Mahomedan faith," ‘and
was received into the King’s household ‘but
Jugut Ray, ‘the brother of the R&Jd, ﬂrst fled
to the hills, and then joined Rana Ruttun, the son
of the late Rana Sanka of Chittoor, with whom

he found a temporary aSylum © Shortly after-

wards, a messenger arrived in camp at Bans.
wara from Rana Ruttun, begging terms for Jugat
Ray. The King having caused a mosque to be

§r.
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built at a village on the Larky G'hat, gave it over in
perpetuity to Jugut Ray, While the Guzerat arwy
remained encamped there, ‘Bahadur Shah received
information that Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy (not-
withstanding, the chligations he had received at
the hands of Moozuffar Shah) had sent Shirza
Khan, the governor of Mando, to plunder some
villages belonging to his ally the Rana of Chittoor,
and had proceeded through Oojein to Sarungpoor.
At the same time advices were received direct from
Rana ‘Rutbun, jeomplaining of the outrage, and
requesting “the ( King to take measures to assist
him. At this period, also, Silhuddy Rajpoot, and
Moyin Khan the son of: Sikundur Khan Me-
watty, officers of the Malwa court, baving in-
timation of their master’s intention upon their
lives, fled to Chittoor, and shortly after Bhowput,

the son of Silhuddy, arrived 'in Bahadur Shah’s -

_camp. Bhowput was honourably received ; and
seven horses were presented to him, besides seven
hundred gold embroidered dresses - to be dis-
tributed among his adherents. While the disaf-
fected officers of the King of Malwa sought

refuge at the Guzerat court, Sooltan Mahmood

himself deputed Duria Khan as envoy to Bahadur
Shah ; stating, that he had it long in contemplation
to pay his respects, but that unforeseen events had
accurred to prevent it ; that he therefore deputed
Duria Khan fo ascertain if a visit, at present
would be agreeable. The King returned a polite
answer, saying, that he should halt at Banswara
for his arrival. A few days only elapsed before
U Ty e _
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Ruttun, Rana of Chittoor, and Silhuddy Poorby
arrived in the Guzerat camp, where being favour-
ably recewed they  were presented with thirty
clephants, and fifteen hundred gold embroidered
~ dresses, when : they returned to  Chittoor; but
most of the Malwa refugees remained with the
ng Bahadur Shah now moved. to Tandla,
where he had agreed to receive the visit of Sooltan
Mahmood, after which he intended to have accom-
'-pamed him as far as the Dydla pass, on his return
to Malwa. = At Tandls, the King’s uephew, Meeran
Mabhomed Khan ruler of kandexsh, arriged 5 and
Duria Khan, the Malwa envoy, icame to say, that
~ Booltar Mahmood, having ‘broken his arm by a
fall from his horse, was nuable to visit Bahadur
Shah. The latter, doubting the truth of this asser-
tion, flatly told the envoy that he did ot believe
him, and obliged him at length to confess the real
truth, that the King of Malwa was unwilling to
come, owing to his bhaving harboured the Prince
Chand Khan of Guzerat, who was living under his
protection.  Bahadur Shah observed, that he had
no enmity towards Chand Khan, and therefore
that need not be adduced as a reason, and that
he therefore expected Sooltan Mahmood would
come to his camp and pay his respects.  The
King continued his march to Depa}pm}r, when he
learned that Sooltan Mahmood only now waited
to place his son in charge of the government of
Mando during his absence.  The delay which
this arrangement  involved gave the Guzerat
courtiers an opportunity of again mmn:presentmg
the conduct of Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy ; so that

. BAHADUR 'SHAH.
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Bahadur Shah marched forthwith to Mando, to
which he laid siege. 'To Meeran Mahomed Khan of
Kandeish was intrusted the post of Shahpoor, on
the west face of the fort. Lokmun Sing was
ordered to occupy Seetulpoor, and the rest of the
Poorbies were sent to Julwara, The head-
quarters of the army occupied Mahomedpoor.
Shaban o, On the night of the 9th of Shaban, in
A 987, the year 937, Bahadur Shah in person,
Feb. 26, + with a small party of Select men, es-

A« Bedosldealaded  the fort undiscovered, and was
soon followed by a considerable body of Guzerat-
ties. ' Having met with no resistance, the troops,
rather than remain quiet till daylight, as had been
concerted, proceeded towards Sooltan Mahmood’s
palace, where the King of Malwa disputed the
passage for a time, till being obliged to give way,
he wis eventually taken prisoner and sent to
Champanere, but he died on the road*, while
Chand Khan, the Guzerat prince, made his escape
during the confusion. The country of Malwa was
now partitioned out into districts, and Bahadur
Shah occupied Mando. On the following year, the
King was prevailed on by his nephew to visit Aseer
and Boorhanpoor, where he was met by Boorhan
. Nizam Shah of Ahmudnuggur, who bad not as
yet received the royal insignia or ftitle from a
sovereign prince. 1 Bahadur Shah at that period

% The circumstances of the death of Sooltan Mahmood of
‘Malwa will be found fully detailed in the history of that kingdom.
& The order of sovereignty, like that of nobility, appears
only to have heen considered valid when conferred by the
hand of some superior legitimate prince. ;

: L2
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conferred on lum the white canopy and scarlet
pavilion, and addressed him with the title of Shah,
which he henceforth assumed, under the name of
Boorhan Nizam Shah Bheiry. *  Bahadur Shalv’s
aobject in courting the King of Ahmudnuggur
had reference to the aid he expected from him in
the attack he then meditated on the kingdom of
Dehly. He was, however, dtsappomted for Boor-
han Nizam Shah not only withheld his assistance in
the subsequent war with Hoomayoon Padshah,
but, on the contrary, deputed a secret. agent to the
Mogul court, long before the war in question took
place, 10 obtain assistance, for the purpose of at-
tacking Guzerat. During this interchange of civi-
lities at Boorhanpoor, Bahadur Shah became so
ieased with Shah Tahir Joonudy, the minister
_of Boorhan Nizam Shah, that he us¢d every means
in hie power to induce him to quit Boorhan Nizam
‘Shah, and reside in Guzerat, but without effect.
Some years afterwards, Shah Tahir succoeded in.
converting Boorhan Nizam Shah II. to the
Sheea persuasion, and induced him to exchange
. the white canopy and searlet pavilion for the green
standard assumed by the followers of Ally. = Ba-
hadur Shah, having returned to Mando, appomted
Mokbil Khan to command the fortress of Cham-
panere, and Yel\htlar Khan bemtr sent with the
puns and mlhtary stores to deposit them in t.hat gar-

116 BAHADUR SHAH.

* Thig is the language of the Guzerat hlstorran, in utder to
graufy the vanity of his master ; for, in reahty the kings of
Ahmudnuggur assumed the royal titles and ms:gma several
generations anterior to the period in question.
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Bubliesmsos. Mson, he returned to Mando on the 21st
sany 21. | of Rubbee-oos-Sany, of which place he
A-8.938.  was appointed governor. = Silhuddy
A:.DtiqigéL Poorby, the late prime minister of’ Sool-
7 tan Grhelas-ood-Deen, within late years
had occupied Qojein as his own ; and the King
wanting some excuse to wrest it out of his hands,
charged him with maintaining in his seraglio a
. number of Mahomedan women. On
Jumad-0ol- yjie 5th of Jumad-ool-Awul the King
o, {sf'?'?.---i'_mo.-‘-_’?d'.ﬁ’om Maudo to Nalcha, when
Ao e Bhowput the son of Silbuddy, then in
- Bahadur _ghah’s service, supposing the King to be
on his return to Guzerat, requested permission to
go to Oojein and see his father, and to bring him to
the presence to pay his respects. The King as.
sented without hesitation, conceiving that Silhuddy
. could have o intimation of his design.
J“A-“;alﬁf';‘;{‘ On the 19th of the same month the King
PR encamped at D’har, where having left
" the army, he proceeded, as if on a hunt.
ing-party, towards Bensrode and Shoojalpoor : at
the latter place he was met by Silhuddy, who had
left his son Bhowput with his family in  Ooojein.
Ameer Nuseer, the chief who had been sent to ac-
company Silhaddy, assured the King that the fidelity
of the Hindoo chief was ot to be depended on,
and that, before he could be persuaded to come at
all, Ameer Nuseer had ventured to promise him the
government of the district of Cambay and a crore
of tunkas, previously to which, Silhuddy had made
preparations to fly to Seevas. On the King’s return
AN B R
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to D’har, having consulted his nobles, he caused
Silhuddy to be seized and confined with two of his
domestics, one of whom made some resistance; but
finding it of no avail, he slew himself with his dagger,
and fell dead at his master’s feet, after declaring he
could not Jive to witness his disgrace,  When this
circumstance became known at Qojein, Bhowput,
the son of Silhuddy, fled, accompanied by many of
his tribe, leaving Qojein to be plundered by the
Mahomedans.  “Ou'the following day Bahadur
Shah wmarched to that city, and having placed
Duaria Khan, one of the ofticers of the late Malwa
government, in charge, he pr'oceed'ed to Sarung-
poor, the command of which was given to Mulloo
- Khan, a Guzerat noble, and Hubeeb Khan was
made governor of Ashta, which district he soon
reduced to subjection. . On the King’s arrival at
" Bhilsa, having ascertained that the Mahomedan
worship had been discontinued for the last ten
years, he caused mosques to be rebuilt, and the
exercise of the religion of the true faith to be
restored. During his stay at Bhilsa he learned
that Bhowput, resolving to resent the disgrace in-
flicted on his father, had collected troops on the
frontier, and had entered into an offensive and
defensive alliance with the Rana of Chittoor. . The
' King, anticipating the march of the Rajpoots, de-
puted Imad-ool-Moolk to attack Bhowput, while
himself marched to Raiseen to oppose Lokmun
Sing, the brother of Silhuddy, who having raised
men in that quarter was waiting the junction of
Bhowput and the Rana of ChlLtoor On approach-
ing within sight of Raiseen the Rajpoots descended
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advanced guard, consisting of a small body of ca-
‘valry, charged the Hindoos without hesitation, and
Bahadur: Shah with his own band slew ten men.
The main body of the cavalry soon after coming
up, the Rajpoots were deteated with heavy loss, and
sought safety in flight within the walls of the fort,
which was 1mmed1ately invested, and a regular
siege commenced. « The Mahomedans, cary ying
their approaches close to the Waﬂ%z effected a prac-
“ticable breach, by means of mines, on the curtain

o) ‘one. face of the fort, and two of the bastions

were also levelled by the fire from the batteries.
Silhuddy, who was a prisoner in the King’s camp,
| perceiving that it was impossible for the fort ito

 make any longer resistance, offered to become a

oselyte to the Mahomedan faith, and then to go

to the fort in order to persuade his brother to

urrender.. The King acceding to the proposal,
Siihuddy formally renounced his religion, and being
clothed with a diess of honour ate at the mval
“table, and subsequently accom panied the King with

& flag of truce to the walls of the fort, recom.

- mending his brother to give up the place. Heac:
qua‘mted him, also, at the same time, of his having
become a Mahomedan. Lokmun, the brother of
Silhuddy, addressing him in their own proviacial
 dialeet, desired lnm to obtain a respite for a few

'days, and to make some excuse for not giving up

the fort immediately, acquainting him that the
_ Rana of Chittoor and Bhowput, with forty thousand

 men,  were: in full march to raise the siege. Sil-

huddy, n: conseqlwme, made some pretext for
1 4
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'ﬂlowmg the garrison to retain posms-‘asmn of the fort
till the next.day. This time was ‘granted ; but when
the period for its surrender arrived further del.iy _
was again required ; and Silhnddy being permitted
to go und'er the walls in order to enquire the cause,
addressed the RaJpoots, saying, that if they re-

~ mained . s0 blind to their interest, the Maho-
medans would, by entering the breaches, put
them all to death, This speech was made in the
presence of the King’s officers, but conveyed a co-
vert reason for holding out, which was sufficiently
understood by Lokmun Sing, who, 1epeatmg the
last words of Sithuddy, showed his countrymen how
little they ought to rely on the Mahomedans.  He
prevailed so far on the troops that, by their exer~
tions, the breaches were repaired during the night ;
and a party of two thousand men, under Silhuddy’s
youngest son, then in the fort, marched out to hasten
the reinforcements under Bhowput and the Rana

~of Chittoor. This party being intercepted by the
besieged was almost entirely cut off, including
the son of Silhuddy who commanded it. The
few who escaped death were taken prisoners, and
brought in the morning before the King. = On
the failure of this enterprise, and the death of his
son, being related to Silhuddy, he fainted ; and the
King, now beginning to suspect him, remanded him
into confinement under charge of Yekhtlar I&h.m,
to be sent to the fort of Mando.

The force under Bhowput was now 'tpp:oa('h-
ing rapidly to Raiseen, under the impression that
the King had but few troops with him. Babadur

. Shah directed !mad-ool-Moolk and Meeran Ma-

'Buzmmm SHAK . 1.
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homed IChan of Kandeish to march and attnck the
enemy.  They had not proceeded far when the
Mahomedans were met by Poorunmul, another son
of Silliuddy, who commanded the advance, consist-
ing of ten thousand cavalry. 'The King hearing
this news, and that Imad-ool-Moolk had halted, left
 Yekhtiar-ool-Moolk to conduct the siege of Raiseen,
and placing himself at the head of the whole of his
cavalry, marched in person and encamped at Gun-
grar. 1 ‘The Rajpoots, hearing of the King’s ap-
. proach, commenced their retreat; and Bahmlur

Shah being shortly after joined by’ Aluf Khan

from Guzerat, with a reinforcement of thirty thou. -

sand fresh troops and a large park of artillery,
proceeded towards Chittoor, to which place the
enemy. had retired. Bahadur Shah resolved, in the

first instance, to bring the siege of Raiseen to a

closey he therefore deferred any attack on Chit.
. toor till the next year. Upon his return Lokmun,
the brother of Silhuddy, perceiving that he could
- not eventual_ly retain the fort, and that all hopes
of succour from Chittoor were at an end, pro-
posed to 'surrender Raiseen, provided his bro-
ther Silhuddy should be released, and again
taken into favour. The King acceded to these
terms, because he was aware that many Maho-
medan females, belonging to Silhuddy, were in
the fort, and he knew that in 'the event of a
storm they would all be burnt alive with the
Rajpoot women, according to the custom of those

péople.  As a preliminaryto the surrender, there-
fore, Silbuddy was brought to Raiseen, and Taj

Khan, who had come to negotiate on the part of
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Lokmun, was permitted to return to the fort.
Lokmun now brought his own family to the lower
fortifications; leaving Taj Khan with some Poorby
Rajpoots in possession of the hill, and sent word to
Bahadur Shah that above four hundred females
‘belonging 'to Silhuddy’s seraglio were in the fort.
Among these was Silhuddy’s wife Doorgawutty,
the mother of Bhowput; and he begged, therefore,
that he should be permitted to go and escort his
own family and females; for that his honour
would sustain a blemish, if they were seen by'the
eye of a stranger, or even by his own ‘biether.
Silhuddy, under custody of Mullik Ally Sheer,
proceeded to the fort; but upon ‘going to take
~ away his family, his wife, Rany Toorgawtty, the
danghter of Rana Sanka, reproached both him and
his brother Lokmun for not having defended the
place.  This woman, with an heroic fortitide,
invoking cnrses on the heads of those who should
not revenge her cause, set fire to a pile with which
she had caused the female apartments to be sur-
rounded, containing seven hundred beautiful wo-
men,  She plunged into the flames, and they were
all consumed. Silbuddy and Lokmun, with one
hundred of their blood relations, now putting on
their armour, and calling on their adherents to
follpw them, rushed impetuously on the Guzerat
troops, and bravely met their fate; not one Rajpoot
surviving, while the Guzeratties only lost four men.
Alum Khan, the governor of Kalpy, who had
rebelled against Hoomayoon Padshah of Dehly,
happening to be in attendance on the King of
Guzerat at this time, received the governments of

BAHADUR SHAZL
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Bhilsa, Raiseen, and Chundery. Bahadup Shah
employed the remaider of that year in hunting
“elephants, and in marching through the country
which  gormerly acknowledged allegiance to the
King of Malwa; and having reduced it to obe-
dience, placed his own gavernors and officers to
~ collect the revenues, and left troops to support

theiy authority. Early in the next year he de.

puted Meeran Mahomed Khan to march and
reduce the fort of Gagrone, wrested from the late
Seoltan. Mahmood by the troops of the Rana of
-Chxmr 3 but as the p}ace had not yet fallen, the
-ng himself moved in that direction, on which
. the enemy evacuated it without further resistance.
JFrom Gagrone the King returned to Mando, leav-
ing Imad-ool-Moolk and Yekhtiar Khan to redace

" Runtunbbore, and shortly after he returned to

‘Guzerat to expel the Europeans who had occupied

the island of Dit. - Upon his approach, however, .

the enemy fled, leaving their guns upon the island;
‘one of which was the largest ever before seen in
India, and required a machine to be constructed for
cbnveying .'iﬁt; to Champmwre. »

* The Mahamedan histcman has treated tlns success agmnst
the Partuguese very ahghtmgly, but Farig-e-Souza (tome i,
‘partiv. ‘chap. iv.) proves that it was one of the greatest efforts
lis vountryinen ever made, and which seems entirely to have
failed.  The fleet which collected in Bombay harbour con-
 sigtéd of four hundred sail of vessels, on which were embarked
. three thousand six hundred European soldiers, and ten thou-
sand native soldiers, besides seamen and Lasears. The Muho-
medans under Moostufa Khan, the governor of Did, so com-
Jpletely repa]sr,d this attack, ‘that the Portuguese found it
necessary to return to Goa,
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' In the year 940 Mahomed Zoman Mirza®, a
relative of Hoomayoon Padshab  f Dehly, who
had been confined in the fort of Byana, makiog
his escape, came to the court of Bahadar Shah.
Hoomayoon wrote to the King of Guzerat to
deliver’ him up, threatening, in case of refusal, -
to march and lay waste Guzerat. Bahadur Shah,
Jittle accustomed to comply with demands from
any potentate, returned an intemperate and haughty
reply (which eventually brought upon him his
ruin); and in order to show the contempt in which
he held the threats of Hoomayoon he conferred
the highest dignities on the Mogul prince, thus
wantonly irritating ' the wound which he had
already inflicted. The King returned to Cham-
panere from Diu by the route of Cambay. and
Ahmudabad, and then marched his' army' to
Chittoor, and invested that place for three months.
The Rana at last agreed to pay a large sum in
gpecie, to present several horses and. elephants,
and, among other jewels, the waist-beitt formerly
in possession of the Khiljy family, and which had
been taken by Sooltan Mahniood of Malwa from
the King of Guzerat’s pavilion in the battle of
Surkech, near Ahmudabad, on the 1st of Suffur,
A.H. 856 (A.D. 1452); after which Bahadur
Shah returned to his capital, = His success in

BAHADUR SHAH,

# Mahomed Zuman was the son of Budee-ooz-Zuman Mirza,
descended through Sooltan Hoossein, King of Khorassan, from
Tamerlane. Vide Genealogy, vol.ii. p. 1. ;

+ This splendid jewel was sent to Medina, with Bahadur
Shah’s family; and is mentioned in the Turkich annals as having
eventually found its way, in the shape of a present, to the Grand
Seignior, Seliman the Magnificent '
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compelling the Rana of (,iuttc)or to pay tribute,
and the expectation he bhad formed of being
shortly joined by tie sons of Bheilole Lody, whu-
had pretensions to the crown of Debly, induced
~ Bahadur Shah to attempt an attack on the capital
of ‘Hindoostan. Alla—aod Deen, the son of Bheilole
Padshah, ‘having reached the court, experienced
‘the most honourable reception  from Bahadur
Shah, and his son Tartar Khan became enrolled

i among the nobles of the state. So confident was

Bahadur Shah of success, that he already began
to allot to his officers the ditferent districts of
Dehly, before. he had even marched his army for

iits sub.]ectlon.: On the following year a sum of

‘three. crores of rupees* was furnished to Imad.
. eol-Moolk, the _governor of Runtunbhore, to
: prowde. T@ttar_than with a force of forty thou-
. sand men; and this prince opened the campaign
by reducing Byana, a fortress near Agra.  Hoo-
 mayoon instantly deputed his brother, Hindal
. Mirza, to keep Tartar Khan in check till he could
_ come in person; but the Mogul troops had scarcely
arvived within a few miles of Tal tar Khan’s camyp at
‘Byana, before the boasting but dastardly Afghans,
of which his army was composed, deserted him,

leaving him ‘with a force considerably short of

twelve thousand men, Tartar Khan, ashamed of
the defection of his. ‘counteymen (particularly, after
'assurmg Bahadur Shak of his confidence in their
attachment), refused to retreat before the superior
force of Hindal Mirza, but resolved to meet his
fate, whateve‘ might be the result, The two

i 'I‘Im,e millions sterling.
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‘armies being drawn out advanced slowly to the

attack.  Tartar Khan'made the first charge, with
a iew confidential retainers, on the centre of
the Debly line, but his troops were defeated,
and he fell covered with wounds. The fort of
Byana was also retaken, and the :a'r-my of Tartar
Khan was completely dispersed.  Hoomayoon,

considering this an auspicious commencement of

the campaign, followed up his success by declaring
war against Bahador Shah. « At this time Ba-
hadur Shali was engaged in' the mege of Chittoor,

and wrote to Hoamayoon, saying, 'that as he
was employed against an infidel he expected that

the Mahomedan king would not oblige him to

raise the siege by invading his country, No answer

was sent to this communication 3 but Hoomayeon
continued his march unmolested  till he reached
Sarungpoor in Malwa; and the King of Guzerat,
under an infatuation equally preposterous and im-

politic, still continued the siege of Chittoor.

Having reduced that place, and put to death
many of the Rajpoot 'garrison, Babadur Shah
distributed largesses to his troops, and marched

towards Hoomayoon, who, on heating of his

approach, also advanced with the Dehly army,

till the two arties met near the town of Mund-
soor. The Guzerat army had scarcely taken up

its ground when Syud Ally Khan and Khorassany

Khan, who commanded the Guzerat pickets,
were driven in, and » panic pervaded the troops
even on this partial defeat. Bahadur Shah called

a council of war on the spot; and Sufdur Khan,

the commandant of cavalry, proposed that the
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army should be led to the atﬁaek on the fellowmg
 day 5 for (said hg) having just gained a victory at
Chittoor 'the sooner the troops are again brought
into action the better. Roomy Khan, on the
other hand, in command of the artillery, proposed
 that the army should be entrenched, and stand
. on the defensive, the Guzerat artﬂlery being
" pref'erable to any then iv India, owing to the ex-
cellent Portuguese guns procured from the ship-
ping captured at Ditt. The latter advice was
‘adopted ; and it was resolved that as the Guzerat-
ties had ‘more fire-arms than the Moguls they
shfmld fortify the camp, and in the attemipts to
.storm their ' lines it was ' supposed the enemy
- would suffer 8o much as to give the Guzerat
 troops confidence, while it would inspire the Mo-
guls. with due respect. At this period the Guzerat
army was joined by Alum Khan of Kalpy, who
 had been invested with the government of Bhilsa
and Chundery. Two months elapsed without
either' army coming to an action, though a few
skirmishers ¢ ?.'_.; went forth, and exhibited feats
of individual courage The Mogul horse, though
unable to make any impression on the intrench-
ments, managed to invest the Guzerat lines so
closely as to cut off their supplies. The forage in
the wvicinity was completely consumed, and no one
dared to quit the lines on account of the Mogul
archers. A famine consequently | ensued.  Ba-
hadur Shah, perceiving that he must eventually be
‘starved into a surrender, suddenly left his camp one
night, accompanied by five persons only, among
whom were Meeran Mdh_omud_ Khan governor of
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Kandeish, and Mulloo Khan goyernor of Malwa?®,
and fled to Mando, ‘without providing, in_any
way for the froops. On ‘the next morning, the
army, discovering  that the King had departed,
broke up, and. the enemy. commenced an  indis-
criminate slaughter and plunder.. Bahaduz Shab,

i

who had esgaped to Mando, was pursued into
that place by Hindoo Beg and seven hundred
Moguls, who entered the fort ‘at, night, along
with his followers, and obliged Bahadur Shah
to continue his flight, with five or six horse-
men, to Champanere, from whence he sent: the
royal jewels o Did, and himself went to Cambay.
Sufdar Khan and Alum Khan (the governors of
Kalpy and Raiseen) fled also, but some days after-
wards they surrendered to the Emperor’s troops,
Sufdur Khan, who was wounded, entered into the
imperial service, but Alum Khan, having before
quitted Kalpy, suffered death. Hoomayoon having
placed his officers in the fort of Mando proceeded
to Champanere, and sacked the city of Maho-
medabad, from whence he made forced marches
to Cambay, compelling Bahadur Shah to fly fo
Div.  After which Hoomayoon returned and took
the fortress of Champanere +, as has been related

in the Dehly history. e e
. 1In the year 942, the farmers of Gu-
i';"_gw' zerat deputed agents to Bahadur Shab,
] assuring him that they were ready and

willing to pay him the reveniies, notwithstanding

# The Moontukhib-oot-’l‘owareekh, with more probability,
statos, that his party for the flight consisted of an imperial
guard of one hundred officers. f ' : L

+ For an account of the siege of Champaner, vide vol. it p. 79
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i occupatwn ofthe country. hy the Moguls. He
acwrdm«ly sent one Qf his conﬁdgmtlal chiefs with
a Jespectable force to collect money in the different
districts. " The' officer selected for this duty was
Itnad- ool-Moe’lh, wim ‘encamped. at Ahmudabad,
and collected about him a force con isting of fifty
thousand men. Hoomayoon, ’heamnﬂr thxs, left
Tardy Beg Khan with his division to protect the
royal treasury at Champanere, and himself marched
to Abmudabad ; at the same time sending a de-.
tachment, under Mirza, Askurry, accompanied by
Yadgar Nasir Mirza and Hindoo Beg, in advance.
These troops encountered the Guzerat force near '
the, city of Mahmoodabad, within twelve coss
of Ahmudabad, where an obstinate engagement
took place. Imad-ool-Moolk was defeated, and -
‘his troops suftered severely. Hoomayoon now
marched on to Ahmudabad, and made the fol-
lowmg distribution of his force: In Ahmudabad,
he left Mirza Askwy ; in Puttun, Yadgar Nasir
Mirza; in Baroach, Kasim Hoossein Sooltan ;
in Baroda, Hindoo Beg; and in Champanere,
Tardy Bég Khan. From Guzerat Hoomayoon
marched to Boorhaunpoor, and thence returned
to Mando. At this period Khan Jehan Shirazy,
one of the Guzerat nobles, occupying the town
of Nowsary, marched in conjunction with Roomy
Khan from Surat towards Baroach, which Kasim
Hoossein Scoltan, conceiving himself anable to
defend, abandoned, and retired to 'Champanere.
This became the signal for a general revolt, and
the subversion of the Mogul authority succeeded,

; G‘rhw&tmfm Beg, one of Mirza Askurry’s officers,
i A VDL. 1v. i
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dmgusted with that prmce, went to Bahadur Shah,
recommending him immediately to march to Ab-
mudabad s and Mirza Askurry, perceiving the late
arrangements of the King had failed to secure the
tranquillity of the conquest, convened a meeting
of the Mog,ul chiefs, and thus addre%ed them 3
¢ The King is at, present at. Mando : the ar rarfgu-
% ments for the ‘occupation of Guzerat not having
-+ succeeded, cour presence here can be of no use.
< Sheer K han Poorby, moreover, is collec.lmg troops
‘ in Bengal, with the intention of proclaiming
« himself King of Dehly; and I think, therefore,
“ we cannot do better than march to Champanere,
“ gecure the treasure, and procecd to ' Agra.”? « The
officers having agreed to this proposal, resolved to
. proclaim Mirza Askurry King of Agra, and to make
Hindoo Beg minister. The Moguls, therefore, left
Ahmudabad (which was immediately occupied by
Jahadur Shah), and marched to~ Champanere,
where Tardy Beg Khan refused to Jjoin in the con-
federacy, but retained his ground. The other
Moguls, howeyer, marched off to Agra, thus aban.
doning the kingdom of Guzerat, which had been
gained by the valour of the Dehly arms in a few
- months, without attempting to retain it by risking a
single engagement. Bahadur Shah now proceeded
to wrest Champanere out of the hands of Tardy
 Beg, who, perceiving he could not defend the fort
alone -agaius;':_tlié whole force of Guzerat, evacuated
it hastily, in hopes of gaining something by follow-
ing the Mogul army towards Agra,
STy In the year 943 the Europeans who
A« 0. 1536, “had made settlements on the coast, were

B&HADUR SHAH.
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in great force at Goa and. Uloul It was, there.
fore, thought expedient to qecure the sea-ponts
of (xuzwat ;' and Bahadur Shah came to Cambay,
where he hegrd thatah fleet, in which were be-
tween four and five thousand Kuropeans, had
arnved off the island of Did. He Jmmedlatdy
repaired thither wx’rharemfmcement of troops ; but
eaceable disposition 'the Europeans evinced
threw him off hLis guavd. ' The admiral of the
 fleet complained  of severe indisposition as an
- excuse for not waiting on the King, while he,
on the other hand, thought that their) services

 might eventually be of use in his war with Hoo-

- | ﬂol inbelhglble. -

-':'-mayoon Padshah. Bahadur Shah, therefore, con-
descended to visit the admiral on board, and was
going over the side of the ship on his return, when
the boat was shoved: off and the King fell into the
iwaters A Eu‘mpean, who was leaning over the
ship’s side at the time, threw a boar ding pike at
- him, which entering his skull he im medmiely sunk,
“and was drowned. ‘The Guzerat army, on hearing
of the Kitzd“’q death, fled, and left the Europeans
in quiet possession of the island of Dit, which
they have retained ever since.  Thus terminated
the life of Bahadur Shah of Guzerat, after a reign
_,'of' eleven years and three months.
. His historian had not time to complete his work,
y whmh s to be regretted, as the multiplicity of
~errors throughout prevents our placing se much
reliance on that nar rauvo as a revisal might have
ensured.* - | -

* The authm of' the M:rut-Iskundry says that the work is

'-;1{'."?,',
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NOFL« BY THL TRANSLATOR

1HE death of Bahadur Shah who was ]ﬁliea hv the
; Purtuguem,, is an e\reut at once so 1umaxkab1u nnd i~
portant that 1 shall be excused from entering into some
detail regaidmg it. . Ferishta, either unwilling to excul-
pate the Portuguese, or to condemn Bahadur Shah,

took little pains to enlighten his readers on a. sub_;ect which

Lie had the means of rnvesngatmtr, as. the eircumstance
happened within half a century of his own time, and it is

certain be had access to the Mir nt«ISkundry, becanse he

refers to it in one part of the Gruzeral hlstary, but he did
not avail himself of it to clear up the wryg; nteresting ques=
tion, as to how Bahadur Shah met with his death.

The Portuguese had for many years been engaged in-

war with the fleets of the King of Guzerat; and Nuno de
Cunha, the governor-general, who arrived in India in 1529,

carried out from Portugal poqitne instructions to make
himself master of the island of Did on th{, Cambay coast,
bclongmfr to the King of Guzerat. A( cmdmély we find
that, in the latter cnd of the next year, he prepan.d that
formidable expedition, consisting of fifteen thousand six
hundred soldiers, embarked on board four hundred vessels
of all descrlptlom, which assembled at Bombay, and which
was repulsed off Did, after repeated vigorous ‘assaults, on
the 17th of February, 1581, From thaL,g}ay, the efforts of
the Portuguese to obtain afootmg on | were: jﬂureasmg

and as they found it in vain to negotiate they endeavoured

to effect it by force, never was:ng to seize every vessel
either belonging to Guzerat or to any of its allies. They
landed, and sacked the towns of ldrapam, Bulgax, and
Surat; and at length received under their protection the
Prince Chand Khm, a brother of Bahadur Shah, who
haying failed to support his pretensions to the Lhrone,
'.lougltt rcﬁm with the Portuguese, through ‘whom, as they
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,asaert, then“ i govemor hnped to tzumpasa some  consi-
“ derable advantage.” In the following year, the Portuguese
under James  de  Silveira burned the towns of Puttun
Bumnat, Pent, Mangulore, Tanna, Tola_]a, and  Moozuf-
furabad, ca.rrymg off four thouband slaves il‘om those places,
besides killing & great number. i

L,

L A thls, abserves the Portuguese hlstormn, “ encou~

“ raged Nuno de Cunha to straiten Ditt and the King of
o C‘amba)a (Guzerat), t hat he might be obhged to cohsent
€ to the raising a fort in that city.” In prosecution of
thls object, the Pmm{ruese took and deatmved B.‘Lssem, in
which place they obtamecl four hundred pieces of cannon,
~and much ammanition.  They subsequently Ianded and
. bumt Damau,_ T anna, aud Bombay,
AL this time, ahudur Shah was engaged in war with
_\._Hoamayoon, as we have seen, when the Portnguese go-
vemor—general ‘deputed an embassy to wait on the It
~tery in order to endeayour to obtain a promise of the
| cession of Diti. The object of Nuno de Cunha was, by
this means, to work on the fears of Bahadur Shah, and to
ulduce him to yield to them' in his distresses what he was
averse to do while his power was unshaken. = At lust, in
 the year 1584, Bahadur Shah consented to terms ot pence,
by which he agreed
v dst, To cede in perpetuxty the town of Bu,asem to the
' Klng of Portugal. - -
' 2dly, Not to construct any ships of war in his ports.
8dly, Not to combine with the Turkish fleets from the
-."Red Sea, or Gulf of Persia, in attacking the Portugmae.
The lilbtﬂllaﬂ remarks, ¢ There were othm articles in fa-
i vour of the King, to sweeten the harshness of these, which
: _“ Were afterwards moderated, when he gave leave to raise
- ¢ the fort at Did.” Faria-e- Sou'm, tome 1. pm‘t iv. chap. v
The followmg chapter is occupied in gwmg ‘an account of
the hlstory of Bahadur Shah, and of his war with Hoo-

. mayoon, which auly serves to show how profoundly ignorant

t‘ne Portugnese were of the interior state of Indja, ‘and how
' K d
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little’ they were mf‘m‘med of ereuts pngsmg aimost under
their own observatlom
We know that Bnha«] ] Shal:"" fter avmg Tds;t all his
dominions with the‘.-“ ' y of the provinee of Sorut,
| came {o Did i in the atm _ '
:mpm‘tumt‘es of the l’nﬂrwﬂéso, he gave them per,m;ssmn
to build a factory. on the island of 1} L which was con-
stracted in the shape of 4 strong fort. | In consideration of
this cession the Por‘.:uguese afforded Bahadur Shah the' sud
of five hundred Euyopeans, of whom fifty § were of note.”
This party attended the King on his retuy himudabad,
when he sncceeded in expel!mg the Mogiils, apd recovering
his throue, which, the Portugueae hlstor r,lem_m ks, was
 effected d throungh their aid alone. i ;
It seems likely that the cession made -’hy" hadar Shah
to the Portugtiese was for the purpose. of raml‘ng o mer-
cantile factory ; whereas the latter undoubtediy. mtended to
buildy as they in ‘fact did, a formidable fortification. From the
moment Balmdut' Shah d!srmrered of what mitare the build-
ing was, and having no longer any motive for keapmrf on
terms w:th the Port uguese, heresolved to wrest it ot of their
bands,  We find the Mahomedan governér of D i shortly
after constructmg a mdl with a rampare, calculgrteﬁ (0 place
guns oh, acrogs the Islan(? on the plen oft sepamtmg the Gu-
- zeratties from the Eumpennﬂ, but in lenhty to be used either
in defending the town against the fort, or in attackmg it if
necessary. Tlie ¢onstruction of this wall led ton mst deal
of discugsion, and created much iil wil :
1l at last the King of Guzerat desisted m_completmg it.
This was the situation.of aff'mr‘s when the evi it oceurred
* which ended in the denth’ of Babadur Shah.” Ferishta, in
iallumng the historian of Bahadur Shab, has related it in
a manner very unsatisfactory, and wholly unf‘avom able to
the Portuguese, ~Abool Fuzl, who wrote'a yery few years
after the event touk place, has done them as little justice ;
but fortunately we have the ﬂct:ount of ?dalm-e-»bou::a, who
- Was h:msdf m India at the tmw, and that of tl)e author of
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the Mzrut—fskundry, ‘whose f'ather A 'a;___an eye-witness, each
endeavouring to make out the most favourable story for his
own partys It would be unjust, therefbre, not to ullow them
to tell their own stor ies. o

The I?nrmguase narratwe is seleeted fmm Captam John
Steevens' translation of I ana-e-Souza, pubhahed in 16945

 that of the Mirut-Iskundry is translaml from a collated ma-
g nuscrbpt copy of the work now in the Last—Indm. House.

:Extract f'mm I*ana-.e.Souz‘t s H1st0ry of thie P
tuguasc, in Asia; trapslated by C‘a.pt‘nn Johu
btcev&ﬁs | -'London edit. 1694. Towe i, part iy
ch'tpter -

. % The Km' "‘of Cambaya, Badur (Bahadur &l’nh}. wlm,
with: only t 'n:,-; assistarice of the ]’mtuguese, had recovered
his kmgﬂfml, now studled their ruin; and repenting he had
- granted leave to xaise the fort, endeavonred to tuke it, and kil
the commander and all theigarrison. Nuno de Cunha under-
stood his wwkeﬁ design, and becran to prepare to prevent it.
AN hat hrave gi.ntleman, I}m'muel de Souza, then com-
,hmnded at Dii. By him' Badur demgn&d to begin the
execution, . On the etghth of October, at night, a Moor
| game, on the wal], and told Souza the King would send
for him the next day to kill him; that he would not
tell his name, lest it might be thuu&,ht an invention to get a
Irewa;d . Emanuel was long in doubt whether to go ox
_stay 3 at Iast he msulve(l to go. Using at other times to have 4
namercus retinue well avmed, he went now with only one
§ sa‘ervant, bmng sent fur at the hour he had been before
_-wamed The Kulg, seeing him unconcerned, converted
. his malice for that time into an honourable 1ecept10n, and
_ Emanuel remmed to the fort.  The ngs mother endea-
 voured to dissuade bim from this wicked intention; and he
thuught it wvas better, by often visiting the Captain in the
' tort, to take‘ ﬂﬂ all suapmlou, and so murdt.r him there, and

':deim upon it He was OP a violent nature, cmcl 50 began
- K4




